
SUNAPEE SELECTBOARD 
BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
TOWN OFFICE MEETING ROOM 
Monday, December 4, 2023, 6:30 p.m. 

Present: Chair Carol Wallace; Vice Chair Suzanne Gottling; Member Josh Trow, Jeremy 
Hathorn, and Frederick Gallup 

Also present: Town Manager Shannon Martinez; Emily Wrenn; Land Use and Assessing 
Coordinator Allyson Traeger 

1. BUDGET ADVISORY MEETING

Patrick Fine asked Town Manager Martinez to update the Advisory Budget Committee
(ABC) on the Town spending plan. He noted the budget book proposes an overall 9%
increase from the 2023 levels. Ms. Martinez said she and Ms. Johnson-Davis have reduced
the budget to a 7.6% increase and explained how that was done. Mr. Fine clarified that the
public will be able to review the adjustments and asked Ms. Martinez to highlight them.

Mr. Fine asked if there had been adjustments to the warrant articles. Ms. Martinez said there
had been and suggested a conversation is needed about the amount of money being allocated
in warrant articles. The Board reviewed and discussed the proposed changes. Mr. Fine said it
would be helpful if the Town had a Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to clarify department
goals and timelines to help inform the voters. Ms. Martinez spoke to the importance of a
Capital Improvement Plan, and said that it is something she would like to reinvigorate.

The Board discussed the purpose of Capital Reserve funds and the part they play in the
budget. Management will review existing capital funds, including creating a history of
activity, to understand and ensure the original intent of each fund is being met.

Ms. Martinez stressed the Fire Department needs to be a priority. Chief Galloway described
the staffing situation in the Department, including retention issues. The Board discussed
whether full-time positions should be added to the budget or presented to the voters as
warrant articles. They also discussed the benefits of full-time versus per diem positions.

Ms. Martinez stressed that all new positions are brought before the Town to be voted on. She
emphasized that if the Town is to move forward, the executive team needs to be empowered
to determine how to accomplish this in a transparent manner. Chair Wallace said the Town
Manager should have the latitude to craft the organization the way she believes it should be
done, utilizing the approved funds however the Town needs to have them utilized.

Mr. Fine summarized that Town management will draw up a proposal to set up a fund to
address restoration of the harbor docks, review the highway equipment Capital Reserve fund,
and clarify the terms of the Perkins Pond grant.



 
Ms. Martinez reviewed the warrant article for the Town to adopt RSA 31:39-c, which enables 
the Code Compliance Officer to perform their duties.  
 
The Board discussed the projected unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year. Ms. 
Martinez said management is not comfortable offering an amount that would be used to pay 
for expenses in 2024 at this time, as they do not totally understand the implication of the 
taxes for the school. She would also like to have a better understanding of the warrant article 
numbers. She should be able to provide this information at her formal budget presentation in 
January 2024. Mr. Fine asked if she could present a summary picture of the budget at the 
December 18, 2023, ABC meeting.  
 
The Board discussed how to handle the details of funding a variety of outside entities and the 
amounts funded.  
 
Ms. Martinez reviewed her priorities moving forward and stressed the need to overhaul the 
Finance Department, as it is the pivotal foundation of the other departments.  
 
The Board discussed other areas that need CIPs and reserve funds. 
 
Chief Galloway explained the ISO rating and the financial benefit of achieving a lower 
rating. He explained that personnel has a large impact on the ISO rating and the assessment is 
done every ten years. The Town's Fire Department is overdue to be assessed.  
 
The Board took a five-minute break.  
 

2. CALL SELECTBOARD MEETING TO ORDER 
 

Chair Wallace called the Selectboard Meeting to order at 8:10 p.m. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 

3. REVIEW OF MINUTES 
 

The staffing and compensation review was not done by Emily Wrenn. The motion was made 
to waive the timber tax in general, not $206 specifically.  

 
MOTION to approve the minutes as amended for the November 27, 2023, Select Board 
meeting made by Member Trow, seconded by Member Gottling. All voted in favor.  

 
4. REVIEW OF ITEMS FOR SIGNATURE 
 

CZCs 
• Parcel ID: 0115-0030-0000, North Shore Road, Vacation Homes LLC 
• Parcel ID: 0125-0023-0000, 1 White Shutters Road, Jennifer & James Shea 
• Parcel ID: 0118-0045-0000, 88 Burma Road, Maureen Binzel 
• Parcel ID: 0218-0007-0000, 22 Chippendale Drive 



 
DRIVEWAY PERMIT 

• Parcel ID: 0115-0030-0000, North Shore Road, Vacation Homes LLC 
 

PERMIT TO EXCAVATE 
• Parcel ID: 0115-0030-0000, North Shore Road, Vacation Homes LLC 

 
SIGN PERMIT 

• Parcel ID: 0146-0029-0000, 77 Upper Bay Road, Woodley Family Revocable Trust 
 

Consent Agenda: MOTION to approve Land Disturbance, Driveway Permit, Permit to 
Excavate, Sign Permit, and Use of Facilities made by Member Gallup, seconded by 
Member Hathorn. All voted in favor. 

 
5. APPOINTMENTS 
 

8:00 – Peter Hoekstra  
 
Peter Hoekstra explained he works in the hazardous materials industry, performing 
demolition and abatement in New England. He offered information on asbestos and the 
health dangers it presents. He noted that most buildings constructed prior to 1989 likely 
contain asbestos. There is a New Hampshire RSA that addresses dealing with asbestos 
correctly and the consequences of not doing so.  
 
He has reviewed the requirements on the Town's demo permit and noted there is nothing that 
addresses the handling of asbestos. He wants to confirm the public is assured that asbestos is 
being dealt with correctly when buildings are demolished or renovated. He reviewed the 
requirements of the RSA and said he would like to see proof that these requirements are 
being met.   
 
The Town reviewed the process they are currently following and how they plan to enforce 
these requirements moving forward.  
 
Mr. Hoekstra offered any support the Board would like to address this issue. The Board 
thanked him for this information and his offer.  
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT: (Public comments can be heard in full here, beginning at 8:33 p.m.) 
 

• John Augustine, via Zoom, said he understands the Town has sent a letter to each 
property that they believe is a short-term rental (STR), asking them to register. He did 
not see the Harbor House Livery listed as a recipient and asked if they received a letter. 
Chair Wallace said they did not. Mr. Augustine asked if the Town believed they should 
register as an STR, as they rent meeting event space on a daily basis, although they do 
not have overnight guests. He believes the state would consider the Livery an STR and 
they should be collecting the rooms and meals tax. He said while the Livery owners are 
a non-profit and do not have to pay property or income taxes, the rooms and meals tax 

https://townhallstreams.com/stream.php?location_id=30&id=55184


is a transfer from the customer to the state. He believes they should have to register and 
be subject to the compliance officer's overview. He noted that the earlier discussion 
regarding outside entities during the ABC meeting did not include the Sunapee Thrift 
Shop. He said the Thrift Shop receives taxpayer dollars and is a black hole that offers 
no detailed accounting. It does not follow the rules of any other Town department, 
although it is listed as one on the Town website. He hopes the Thrift Shop will be 
included in any future budget discussions.  

• Lisa Hoekstra, president of the Lake Sunapee STR Association, asked how many 
STRs have registered and was told there were 12. She asked if there will be any 
discussion regarding STRs at this meeting and was told yes. She asked to be invited to 
the table during that discussion, as a local expert and STR representative. She said there 
have been other organizations that the Board has invited to the table as a representative. 
Ms. Martinez explained when a representative has been invited to join the discussion, it 
is organized in advance and is part of the agenda. Chair Wallace said they do not feel 
Ms. Hoekstra needs to be at the table, as it will be a Board discussion.  

• Lisa Hoekstra, resident, said she was told in September that legal case documents 
would no longer be in the agenda or the minutes. The Board agreed they would be in 
their reading file and available to the public through Right-To-Knows. Since then, legal 
documents have appeared in the minutes and on the agenda three times. She asked how 
this happened. She said it feels targeted and it is not right. She also asked the Board to 
consider returning to the ethics policy. The old policy is still on the website and 
editorial changes need to be made to the new policy. She said it is still unclear if Board, 
volunteers, and staff will be signing the policy annually or upon hire, appointment, or 
election. She said without this policy clearly in place, there is a risk of continued 
conflict of interest that could lead the boards into legal challenges, if members do not 
recuse themselves. She said it is a very real threat that needs to be considered. She said 
having a signed ethics policy in place will help protect the Board and the Town. She 
said the Town's legal fee bleed is continually increasing. She said the Board discussed 
having an open forum after community conversation meetings to allow dialogue and 
asked if this is still planned. Chair Wallace said it did happen, as she and Ms. Hoekstra 
spoke. Ms. Hoekstra said it has not been publicized that the opportunity is available.  

• Chris Whitehouse read an email sent by the Town about registering STRs and said it 
states that properties operating prior to December 1, 2022, that register by January 1st 
will not be held to the anticipated 2024 planning and zoning amendments, including a 
120-day rental limit. He asked if the Board is stating that part of the ordinance will not 
be enforced on every STR registered by December 7th that was in business prior to 
December 1, 2022. The Board did not reply. He said per the lack of the Board's answer, 
this is a fact. Chair Wallace said she did not recall voting on this. Mr. Whitehouse said 
there was no discussion and no vote, so this is a lie and the email should be retracted. 
He asked Ms. Martinez for a response and she said she does not like to be put in a 
position where she has to answer questions during public comment. Chair Wallace said 
the Board will be discussing this later and will come to a conclusion that will be made 
public. Mr. Whitehouse said the Town has communicated something false. He said he 
did a Right-To-Know request for six months' of everything that was transferred in 
electronic format and discovered that the Town will send electronic information to 
everybody except himself, Christine, and the Hoekstras. He said this is discrimination. 



He said if the Town creates a process that requires three people, that is why staff 
members are wearing numerous hats. He said the state and every other town provides 
information via email. He said the Town sent out an RFP at 3:00 p.m. today that has a 
walk-through at 10:00 a.m. tomorrow and this is short notice, so some individuals 
cannot make it. He said it seems like the Town is trying to give the contract to one 
person. He said the walk-through needs to be extended a week.  

• Christine Corey asked if the Board would consider changing the rules and procedures
to allow the public to comment for five minutes instead of three. Chair Wallace said she
believes it has been considered previously and the Board settled on three minutes. Ms.
Corey asked the Board to reconsider this decision and they said no. Ms. Gottling said
she feels this is not appropriate for public comment and Ms. Corey said the Board can
answer yes or no to public questions. She shared an example of a car manufacturer who
produced cars that exploded upon rear impact. She said it was perceived there was a
problem and it turned out there was a problem. She said the company went out of
business because the public stopped buying their cars. She asked the Board to
reconsider their motion of October 30th to accept the Dominion voting machine. She
asked for the voters to be able to make that decision. The Board said they would not
reconsider the motion.

Chair Wallace closed public comment. 

7. SELECTBOARD ACTION

8. TOWN MANAGER REPORT

Audit
Ms. Martinez said they will update the Board at each meeting on progress being made
addressing issues brought up during the audit.

Holiday Schedule
Ms. Martinez asked if the Board would be in agreement to align with the federal holiday
schedule. This will add four holidays. She reviewed the budget implications of this decision
for the Police and Fire Departments.

MOTION to approve aligning with the federal holiday schedule for 2024 made by
Member Trow, seconded by Member Gottling. All voted in favor.

The January 15, 2024, Selectboard meeting will move to January 22, 2024.

Town Hall Furnace Replacement
The overhaul is scheduled for February 14-15, 2024. Town Hall will be closed those days
and Town Hall team members will work from home. Following the initial presentation to the
Board, the Buildings and Grounds team met with several vendors. They decided to
implement a different solution that will yield greater longer-term efficiencies. Due to
department staffing vacancies, they Town will not be taking money from the Capital Reserve



fund and will instead cover the costs with money not expended from those lines. The total 
cost will be $18,000.  

Coalition 2.0 Update 
Ms. Trager and Ms. Martinez attended the November 29th meeting. The Joint Board voted to file 
an appeal on the Rand Decision to the NH Supreme Court. One of the most important aspects of 
the Court decision is the timing of the order. In the Rand Decision, the Court ordered that, “any 
SWEPT funds generated by a community which exceed the amount of adequacy aid to which 
that community is statutorily entitled must be remitted to the DRA.” If this order goes into effect, 
it could be for Town and School budget votes in March or April of 2024. The Town anticipates 
that such an order would have negative impacts on both School and Town/City budgets, if they 
attempt to go through the 2024 budget process with uncertainty about the use of SWEPT. One 
piece that makes any estimates difficult is understanding when the $7,356.01 will come into 
play.  

Short-Term Rental 
Ms. Martinez noted the Town needs to be aware of the division between what the Board's 
registration is and the rules that govern the STR registration process, and the rules that govern 
the planning and zoning land use case. She explained that any STR that is in operation in 2023 
and is fully compliant would not be impacted by any of the proposed changes, rules, or 
regulations as they pertain to section 4.95 (Short-Term Rentals) of the Zoning Ordinance. By 
having section 4.95 in the ordinance, all STRs must now comply with Zoning use definitions and 
regulations.

She also explained that if an STR was in existence before December 7, 2023, it would not have 
to comply with the proposed amendments to Section 4.95 of the Zoning Ordinance, as they are 
considered grandfathered by the definition of the ordinance. But to obtain the entire protection, it 
has to be registered. In order to be compliant with section 4.95 as a land use regulation, it has to 
be registered.  

The Town asked the Board to set a date for STRs to be registered and January 1, 2024, was 
chosen, to give people time to register. When this date was set, the Board was not aware that 
there would be changes to section 4.95. 

She reviewed the different classification of STRs and the associated dates for registration. She 
explained that some of the rules governing the process have to do with planning, zoning, and 
land use, and others have to do with the Selectboard's regulation.. There will be a public hearing 
on December 21st, and she urged the public to attend to learn more about this. 

She said Ms. Hoekstra offered some suggestions to adjust the language used when discussing 
STRs and in documents pertaining to the Selectboard’s STR registration process. The Town is 
offering Help Desk meetings to answer questions and do registrations on the spot. Another round 
of letters will be sent out, offering STR owners another opportunity to register.  

Perambulation 
Ms. Martinez reported Clayton Platt, per previous communication on this matter, facilitated the 
setting of the Town boundary between Sunapee and Goshen at Brook Road. 



9. SELECTBOARD MEMBERS' REPORTS

Mr. Trow asked about the RFP mentioned by Mr. Whitehouse. Mr. Traeger explained the
announcement went out as a reminder, and the RFP has been posted online and in the
Shopper. It was not originally issued today. Mr. Trow said if there is not a policy that gives a
suitable period of time to respond, this should be investigated.

Chair Wallace said the annual report from the Selectboard is due December 22, 2023. She
invited the members to send her details on anything that should be highlighted.

Chair Wallace noted the next meeting is December 20th on the Tri-Town Watershed
Initiative. As she will not be able to attend, she asked for someone to provide an update on
the septic regulation compliance. Ms. Martinez said she will take care of this.

Chair Wallace said the Selectboard received a letter from Lisa Hoekstra enumerating issues
that she would like the Board to consider. She asked the Board if they would like to discuss
these issues. Ms. Gottling said she believed Ms. Martinez provided information during this
meeting that clarified the situation. The Board agreed no further discussion was needed.

Chair Wallace asked Ms. Martinez if different dates and times are being tested for the
Community Conversation, as not many people attended the last one. Ms. Martinez said when
they were scheduled at a regular date and time, there was good attendance. The next meeting
is scheduled for December 8th at 11:00 a.m. The Board discussed resurrecting Coffee with
the Chief. Mr. Trow noted that while he supports it, it appeared that the same 10-15 members
of the public attended each meeting.

Chair Wallace reported she attended the Community Conversation in November and had a
discussion with a member of the public afterwards. She said this is the opportunity for the
public to have an extended conversation with a member of the Board.

10. UPCOMING MEETINGS

• Conservation Committee Meeting: December 6, 2023, 7:00 PM 
• Zoning Board of Adjustments Meeting:  December 7, 2023, 6:30 PM
• Sunapee Selectboard Meeting: December 18, 2023, 6:30 PM 

11. NON-PUBLIC SESSION

MOTION to enter a non-public session per RSA 91-A:3, II(c) Matters which, if
discussed in public, would likely affect adversely the reputation of any person, other
than a member of this board, unless such person requests an open meeting. This
exemption shall extend to include any application for assistance or tax abatement or
waiver of a fee, fine or other levy, if based on inability to pay or poverty of the applicant
made by Member Gottling, seconded by Member Hathorn. A roll call vote was taken.
All voted in favor.



 
Non-public session was entered at 9:20 p.m. 
Regular meeting was re-opened at 9:48 p.m. 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 9:52 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Beth Hanggeli 
Recording Secretary 
 
 





SUNAPEE SELECTBOARD 

BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING AGENDA 

6:30PM TOWN OFFICE MEETING ROOM 

Monday, December 4th, 2023 

Join us on Zoom: https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86066395397 

 

1. BUDGET ADVISORY MEETING:  

• Warrant Article Discussion 

• Funding of Outside Agencies  

• Revenue/Expenditure Discussion 

• Preliminary Town Manager Prioritization Discussion  

• ARPA Discussion  

 

2. CALL SELECTBOARD MEETING TO ORDER: 

 

3. REVIEW AND APPROVE MINUTES: 

 

4. REVIEW OF ITEMS FOR SIGNATURE: 

CZC’s 

• Parcel ID: 0115-0030-0000, North Shore Road, Vacation Homes LLC 

• Parcel ID: 0125-0023-0000, 1 White Shutters Road, Jennifer & James Shea 

• Parcel ID: 0118-0045-0000, 88 Burma Road, Maureen Binzel 

• Parcel ID: 0218-0007-0000, 22 Chippendale Drive 

LAND DISTURBANCE 

• Parcel ID: 0115-0030-0000, North Shore Road, Vacation Homes LLC 

DRIVEWAY PERMIT 

• Parcel ID: 0115-0030-0000, North Shore Road, Vacation Homes LLC 

PERMIT TO EXCAVATE 

• Parcel ID: 0115-0030-0000, North Shore Road, Vacation Homes LLC 

SIGN PERMIT 

• Parcel ID: 0146-0029-0000, 77 Upper Bay Road, Woodley Family Revocable Trust 

USE OF FACILITIES 

 

5. APPOINTMENTS: 

• 8:00 PM-Peter Hoekstra 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86066395397


7. SELECTBOARD ACTION:

• Motion to enter nonpublic under RSA 91-A:3 II(c)--Matters discussed in public likely to

affect reputation.

8. TOWN MANAGER REPORT:

• Audit Finding Discussion ~Spreadsheet

• Formal Approval of FY 2024 Holiday Schedule

9. SELECTBOARD MEMBERS’ REPORT:

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

• Conservation Committee Meeting: December 6, 2023 7:00 PM 

• Zoning Board of Adjustments Meeting December 7, 2023 6:30 PM 

• Sunapee Selectboard Meeting: December 18, 2023 6:30 PM 

NONPUBLIC: The Board of Selectmen may enter a nonpublic session, if so voted, to 

discuss items listed under RSA 91-A:3, II 



SUNAPEE SELECTBOARD 

BUDGET ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 

TOWN OFFICE MEETING ROOM 

Monday, November 27, 2023, 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

Present: Chair Carol Wallace; Vice Chair Suzanne Gottling; Member Josh Trow. 

Also present: Town Manager Shannon Martinez; Finance Director Ronna Johnson-Davis 

 

1. BUDGET ADVISORY MEETING 

 

Town Manager Martinez updated the Advisory Budget Committee (ABC) on the status of the 

budget, incorporating the suggestions of the Committee from last month's presentation. There 

will be follow-up meetings with the Fire Wards to discuss the growth and development of the 

Fire Department. The Supreme Court decisions on education financing could also affect the 

upcoming budget.  

 

The Committee requested a revenue estimate and a review of the specific components of the 

budget for the next meeting. Ms. Martinez explained the correlation between budget 

limitations and the Town's desire to move forward and be innovative.  

 

Ms. Johnson-Davis presented a review of staffing and compensation, including the 

challenges of hiring and retaining employees in today's market. Wages and the lack of 

affordable housing are some of the issues. They discussed conducting a compensation survey 

to compare wages, benefits, turnover, and so on with other towns in the region. The 

Committee noted the importance of retention and the need for a retention policy and a more 

robust employee evaluation process tied to compensation.  

 

Chair Wallace asked if the Committee has discussed putting staff positions in a warrant 

article as opposed to embedding them in the budget. The Board agreed this should be 

discussed on a case-by-case basis to consider the possible consequences of each route.  

 

2. CALL SELECTBOARD MEETING TO ORDER 

 

Chair Wallace called the Selectboard Meeting to order at 7:28 p.m. and led the Pledge of 

Allegiance. 

 

3. REVIEW OF MINUTES 

 

In section 4, bullet 7, change Chair White to Chair Wallace.  

 

MOTION to approve the minutes as amended for the November 13, 2023, Select Board 

meeting made by Member Trow, seconded by Member Gottling. All voted in favor.  

 

4. REVIEW OF ITEMS FOR SIGNATURE 



 

CZCs 

• Parcel ID:0126-0024-0000, 8 Old Norcross Road, Michael & Janet Jesanis Trust  

• Parcel ID: 0232-0018-0000, 46 Depot Road, 46 Depot Rd LLC, Jim Bruss 

 

LAND DISTURBANCE 

• Parcel ID: 0128-0031-0000, 90 Garnet Street, Michael & Sharon Kelly 

• Parcel ID: 0125-0012-0000, 36 Jobs Creek Road, Duane & Elizabeth Delfosse 

 

USE OF FACILITIES 

• Retroactive Approval: November 20, 2023, Make A Wish Parade 

 

INTENT TO CUT 

• Parcel ID: 0234-0008-0000, Stagecoach Road, RH Webb Forest Preserve, LLC 

 

Consent Agenda: MOTION to approve CZCs, Land Disturbance, Use of Facilities, and 

Intent to Cut made by Member Trow, seconded by Member Gottling. All voted in favor. 

 

5. APPOINTMENTS 

 

7:30 – Public Hearing for the Acceptance and Expenditure of Unanticipated Revenue 

from State of New Hampshire Highway Block Grant of $35,295.52 

 

Ms. Martinez said the Staff's recommendation is to earmark these funds for the evaluation of 

repairs needed for Georges Mill Bridge. These funds can only be used for specific purposes.  

 

Chair Wallace invited public comment. Chris Whitehouse clarified that these funds would be 

used for the Georges Mill Bridge and the Board agreed. 

 

Chair Wallace closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION to accept the Block Grant in the amount of $35,295.52 to be directed towards 

Georges Mills Bridge made by Member Trow, seconded by Member Gottling. All voted 

in favor. 

 

7:30 – Conservation Commission 

 

Van Webb, Chair of the Sunapee Conservation Commission, and Matthias Nevins of 

Meadowsend Timberlands appeared before the Board to present an update on the restoration 

project of the meadow at Dewey Woods. Mr. Webb asked the Board to waive the timber tax 

with an initial estimate of $206. Mr. Nevins reviewed the project, which will include 

harvesting trees to return the meadow to its historic footprint. The trees will be transported 

along old Route 11 to the Town gravel pit before being taken to the mill. They are working 

with Highway Director Michael Martell on this. The Commission has funds to cover the cost 

of this project.  

 



MOTION to approve waiving the timber tax made by Member Gottling, seconded by 

Member Trow. All voted in favor. 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT: (Public comments can be heard in full here, beginning at 7:46 p.m.) 

 

• Chris Whitehouse noted errors in the tax calculation information sent out by the Town. 

He directed a comment to Patrick Fine of the ABC, saying he does not agree that 

people want full-time positions put into the budget. He believes people want the chance 

to determine whether or not they want that position. He said the discs supplied by the 

Town with Right to Know information could have viruses on them, so he would like 

the information sent to him electronically. He said this information has been supplied to 

him electronically in the past and if the Town will not do this, they will have to print 

the information. He said the Town claiming they cannot send Right to Know 

information electronically is a lie. He noted the information presented regarding the 

budget did not include the retirement package and if the cost of someone doing a 

similar job in the civilian world is 25% more, then it is equal.  

• Lisa Hoekstra will be meeting with Town Manager Martinez regarding the STR 

registration process. She asked how many people have registered. Ms. Martinez said 

there have been five registrations. Ms. Hoekstra said two of the significant questions 

she is hearing are if there is a deadline, as one was not communicated in the letter sent 

out regarding registration, and about the proposed 120-day rental limit. She said this is 

muddying the waters of the registration process and is a huge concern for STR owners. 

She said it was disappointing that the Planning Board did not pay attention to the 65 

people who said they did not want the 120-day limit. She offered to provide this 

information to the Selectboard.  

• John Augustine believes it was mentioned at a prior meeting that the Police and Fire 

Departments do not have a retention requirement, if individuals are sent for training. 

He asked why a requirement does not exist, as it would solve the retention problem. He 

believes that everyone getting a 2.5% step increase in addition to a COLA has an 

impact on retention. He thinks the increase should depend on performance and this 

would solve the retention issue. He understands the Town owes the County $5 million 

by December 17, 2023. The tax bill due date is December 21, 2023. The first tax billing 

collected $2 million. He encouraged the Board to think about how they are going to pay 

the remaining $3 million. He thinks there should be discussion on why the due date is 

December 21. He believes this is due to the assessor not finishing the reevaluation 

process in time.  

• Christine Corey asked if "draft" watermark could be less visible on the draft minutes. 

She asked the Board reconsider the October 30, 2023, vote/motion to accept the new 

voting tabulation machine by Dominion and wait until the voters can vote on which 

type of machine they would like. Chair Wallace said this decision is in the purview of 

the Selectboard and that any concerns were mitigated by the $800 million settlement. 

Ms. Corey said there are many other cases coming up. Mr. Trow suggested anyone with 

questions about the voting machine should speak with the Town Clerk. Ms. Corey said 

she believes the Board is wrong and they are doing the voters a huge disservice by not 

letting them vote on this.  

 

https://townhallstreams.com/stream.php?location_id=30&id=55179


Chair Wallace closed public comment.  

 

7. SELECTBOARD ACTION 

 

Certificate of Appointment – Ian Kirk, Recreation Committee 

 

MOTION to appoint Ian Kirk to the Recreation Committee made by Member Trow, 

seconded by Member Gottling. All voted in favor.  

 

8. TOWN MANAGER REPORT 

 

• Tax Rate: Ms. Martinez reviewed the tax rate, which was set at $9.68 per thousand, 

and how it was determined. Mr. Fine of the ABC asked the Town to consider the delta 

between revenue estimates and expenditure plans, and then determine what impact this 

will have on the amount of money needed from the citizens. Ms. Martinez said she 

believes they have done this, but they will review the process. Chair Wallace asked Mr. 

Fine to write down the process he is looking for, to ensure the Town Finance 

Department understands his request. The Board discussed the items they can control in 

the revenue estimates.  

 

• Tax Bill: Ms. Martinez clarified that the reevaluation was not delayed; due to the 

number of people who wanted to speak with the assessor, the deadline was extended. 

Chair Wallace asked if there is an issue regarding the gap between the deadlines and 

Ms. Martinez said she is not concerned, although it is possible to obtain a TAN if 

necessary.  

 

• Legal Update  

o November 21, 2023: KTP Hearing  

o November 29, 2023: Hoekstra Hearing  

o December 16, 2023: Weiss Hearing  

 

• Coalition 2.0: There is a meeting on November 29, 2023, to try to get a better 

understanding of what it means regarding Sunapee becoming a donor town, if the cases 

stand. The Board discussed education funding and how it impacts the Town.  

 

• FY 2022 Audit: Ms. Martinez updated the Board on the FY 2022 audit. Chair Wallace 

asked for a summary of the recommendations made and an action plan.  

 

• Meeting Room: The Board discussed the possibility of reconfiguring the meeting 

room to provide more space.  

 

9. SELECTBOARD MEMBERS' REPORTS 

 

There were no Selectboard member reports.  

 

10. UPCOMING MEETINGS 



 

• Water and Sewer Commissioners Meeting: November 30, 2023, 5:30 PM  

• Sunapee Selectboard Meeting: December 4, 2023, 6:30 PM 

• Conservation Committee Meeting: December 6, 2023, 7:00 PM  

• Zoning Board of Adjustments Meeting December 7, 2023, 6:30 PM  

• Sunapee Selectboard Meeting: December 18, 2023, 6:30 PM 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 

 

The meeting was adjourned at 8:37 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Beth Hanggeli 

Recording Secretary 


















